
Meeting of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON

Date/Time: Tuesday, August 8, 2017 @ 7:00 p.m.

Location: Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building)
321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin

Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Michael
Engelberger, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson, Dennis Kittleson,
Tom Majewski, Pat O’Connor, Lisa Reeves, and Scott Truehl

ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A
QUORUM (EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are
unable to attend the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via
email lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us

CALL TO ORDER

1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:
 Update from City Attorney regarding his work with the Landmarks Commission on Chapter

38 - Historic Preservation Ordinance

2. Minutes and Reports:
 Public Safety Committee (6/28/2017), Finance Committee (6/27/2017, & 7/11/2017),

Community Affairs and Council Policy Committee (7/6/2017), and CIP Committee
(6/26/2017)

3. Public Comment Period:

4. CONSENT AGENDA

A. July 25, 2017 Council Minutes
B. July 20, 2017 Joint Meeting of the Committee of the Whole and Stoughton Area School

District Board

OLD BUSINESS

NONE

NEW BUSINESS

5. O-8-2017- Amending Chapter 70-176 (47) of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; relating to
parking restrictions in Business Park North (Public Safety Committee approved 5-0 on July 26,
2017)

FIRST READING

OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin,

will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and

location given below.



6. O-9-2017- Creating Chapter 70-176 (73) of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; relating to
parking restrictions on the north side of the 300 block of West Taft Street (Public Safety
approved 5-0 on July 26, 2017) FIRST READING

7. R-115-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue a Class “A”
Fermented Malt Beverage License and “Class A” Liquor License (Cider Only) to Kwik Trip,
INC d/b/a Kwik Trip #893 located at 1359 US Highway 51. (Public Safety approved 5-0 on July
26, 2017)

8. R-116-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue an Operator License to
Sheila Trentini. (Public Safety denied 5-0 on July 26, 2017)

9. R-117-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a Temporary Class
“B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and Special Event License to the St. Ann Catholic Church.
(Public Safety approved 5-0 on July 26, 2017)

10. R-118-2017- Authorizing Council approval of a policy (attached as exhibit A) implementing
Section 14-38(a) of the Stoughton Municipal Code; relating to the fining of late arriving annual
liquor license renewal applications. (Public Safety approved 5-0 on July 26, 2017)

11. R-119-2017- A resolution approving the Summary Report of the Redevelopment
Authority of the City of Stoughton (“RDA”) regarding the sale of the property located at
314 West Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin (commonly known as the Marathon site)
(the “Property”). (Redevelopment Authority approved 6-1, with Truehl voting noe on July
18, 2017)

12. Discussion and possible action regarding the creation and appointment of members to an
Ad Hoc Committee for the Stoughton Common Council and Stoughton Area School
District. (Committee of the Whole approved 8-0 on July 20, 2017)

*** The Council may meet in closed session per State Statute 19.85 (1)(c) to consider the
acquisition of property for the proposed Public Works Facility. The Council may reconvene in
open session to take action on matters discussed in closed session and to consider the remaining
items on the agenda.

13. *** R-120-2017- A resolution approving purchase of 55 acre parcel subject to an existing
easement.

14. Discussion regarding Attorney’s conclusions and Clerk’s findings relating to the Planning
Commission process and procedures relating to the Demolition of Historic Buildings.
(Request made by Alderperson Engelberger at the July 25, 2017 Common Council
Meeting)

15. ADJOURNMENT

Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For
information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: Mayor Donna Olson, Council President Tim Swadley





Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time: Tuesday, August 8, 2017 @ 7:00 p.m.   


Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Michael 


Engelberger, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson, Dennis Kittleson, 


Tom Majewski, Pat O’Connor, Lisa Reeves, and Scott Truehl  


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A 


QUORUM (EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are 


unable to attend the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via 


email lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 Update from City Attorney regarding his work with the Landmarks Commission on Chapter 


38 - Historic Preservation Ordinance 


 


2. Minutes and Reports:  


 Public Safety Committee (6/28/2017), Finance Committee (6/27/2017, & 7/11/2017), 


Community Affairs and Council Policy Committee (7/6/2017), and CIP Committee 


(6/26/2017) 


 


3.      Public Comment Period:   


 


4.      CONSENT AGENDA 


 


A. July 25, 2017 Council Minutes 


B. July 20, 2017 Joint Meeting of the Committee of the Whole and Stoughton Area School 


District Board 


 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


NONE  


  


NEW BUSINESS 


 


5. O-8-2017- Amending Chapter 70-176 (47) of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; relating to 


parking restrictions in Business Park North (Public Safety Committee approved 5-0 on July 26, 


2017) 


          FIRST READING 


 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 


Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, 


will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and 


location given below. 


  


 



mailto:lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us





6. O-9-2017- Creating Chapter 70-176 (73) of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; relating to 


parking restrictions on the north side of the 300 block of West Taft Street (Public Safety 


approved 5-0 on July 26, 2017)      FIRST READING 


 


7. R-115-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue a Class “A” 


Fermented Malt Beverage License and “Class A” Liquor License (Cider Only) to Kwik Trip, 


INC d/b/a Kwik Trip #893 located at 1359 US Highway 51. (Public Safety approved 5-0 on July 


26, 2017) 


 


8. R-116-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue an Operator License to 


Sheila Trentini. (Public Safety denied 5-0 on July 26, 2017) 


 


9. R-117-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a Temporary Class 


“B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and Special Event License to the St. Ann Catholic Church. 


(Public Safety approved 5-0 on July 26, 2017) 


 


10. R-118-2017- Authorizing Council approval of a policy (attached as exhibit A)  implementing 


Section 14-38(a) of the Stoughton Municipal Code; relating to the fining of late arriving annual 


liquor license renewal applications. (Public Safety approved 5-0 on July 26, 2017) 


 


11. R-119-2017-  A resolution approving the Summary Report of the Redevelopment 


Authority of the City of Stoughton (“RDA”) regarding the sale of the property located at 


314 West Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin (commonly known as the Marathon site) 


(the “Property”). (Redevelopment Authority approved 6-1, with Truehl voting noe on July 


18, 2017) 


 


12. Discussion and possible action regarding the creation and appointment of members to an 


Ad Hoc Committee for the Stoughton Common Council and Stoughton Area School 


District. (Committee of the Whole approved 8-0 on July 20, 2017) 


 


***  The Council may meet in closed session per State Statute 19.85 (1)(c) to consider the 


acquisition of property for the proposed Public Works Facility. The Council may reconvene in 


open session to take action on matters discussed in closed session and to consider the remaining 


items on the agenda. 


 


13. *** R-120-2017- A resolution approving purchase of 55 acre parcel subject to an existing 


easement. 


 


14. Discussion regarding Attorney’s conclusions and Clerk’s findings relating to the Planning 


Commission process and procedures relating to the Demolition of Historic Buildings. 


(Request made by Alderperson Engelberger at the July 25, 2017 Common Council 


Meeting) 


 


15. ADJOURNMENT 


 


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For 


information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: Mayor Donna Olson, Council President Tim Swadley 








CIP AD HOC COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
June 26, 2017 – 6:30 p.m.
Council Chambers - 321 South Fourth Street


Present:
Tim Swadley, Pat O’Connor, Greg Jenson, Scott Truehl, Lisa Reeves, Kathleen
Johnson and Mayor Olson


Others Present:
Brett Hebert, Tom Lynch, Richard MacDonald, Greg Leck, Derek Westby and Tammy
LaBorde


Absent and Excused:
Tom Majewski and Regina Hirsch


Call to Order
Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m.


Elect Chair
Per the ordinance the Council President is the chair of the committee unless he/she
chooses to defer, Council President Swadley accepted the chair.


Elect Vice Chair
Motion by Jenson to nominate Truehl as the Vice Chair, second by O’Connor. No other
nominations were made. Truehl was unanimously elected Vice Chair.


Review and Approve 2018-2022 Capital Improvement Plan Proposals
Finance Director LaBorde presented the CIP funding summary. She explained the
items that were distributed in the packet – the proposed 2018-2022 schedule,
department requests, a list of the public works fleet, a list of the items that were
approved for the 2017 borrowing, and information related to the debt schedule.


Director Hebert provided detail on the proposed street construction projects and the
public works facility.


Director LaBorde provided an update on proposed RDA projects which will require
funding and noted that she and our consultant Gary Becker are working on additional
information.


Chief Leck provided detail on the proposed Police Department items. President
Swadley suggested that the Chief contact the school district related to the carpet that
they used which is weather resistant. He has placed the motorcycle unit on the list of
items and would use it for traffic enforcement and park patrol. He is looking at a Harley
or Zero 1. They would use the motorcycle for five or six months, March thru November.
He plans to collect testimonials from other departments. He also explained his request
for ballistic blankets and the upgrades to the county radio system.







CIP AD HOC COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
JUNE 26, 2017


Director Hebert provided background information on the items that are listed for
replacement in 2018. The proposed 4000 Lawn mower will be used for the additional
twenty acres of land that is now the city’s to mow. This includes Nordic ridge, kpw park,
and kpw frontage along 138 and 51.


Director Lynch provided background information on the 2018 requests. He stated that
the Mandt Park study is in process. He stated that he has requested funding for a study
for a Whitewater Park. There are a number of obstacles that he is encountering so he
is not certain that it will move forward.


Next Meeting
President Swadley suggested another meeting. The consensus was to plan for
Monday, July 24, 2017 at 6:00 p.m.


Adjournment
Motion by O’Connor to adjourn the meeting of the CIP Ad Hoc Committee, second by
Jenson. Motion carried unanimously 4-0. The CIP Ad Hoc Committee meeting
adjourned at 8:19 p.m.







PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
Wednesday, June 28, 2017


Hall of Fame Room, City Hall


Present: Alderpersons, Greg Jenson, Dennis Kittleson, Scott Truehl and Kathleen Johnson


Absent: Mayor Olson


Guests: Police Chief Greg Leck, Clerk Lana Kropf, Theresa Pellet, Tricia Suess and Bobby
Becker


Call to Order: Truehl called the meeting to order at 6:15 p.m.


Discussion and possible action regarding Operator License Application for Bobby
Becker:
Chief Leck explained that he denied the application for this individual due to an unpardoned
felony charge relating to controlled substances. Mr. Becker explained that he had not had any
other issues or charges since this conviction. He is looking for his license so that he may work
and make money. The Committee discussed concerns of an individual with that type of
conviction working in a bar type setting. Becker noted that if he does not receive his license he
will not be hired at that establishment.


Motion by Jenson, to deny the license for Bobby Becker and refer to Council for consideration,
second by Kittleson. Motion to deny carried 4-0.


Communications:
Clerk Kropf explained that all licenses have been issued and printed and that all license
holders were notified on June 16, 2017. All but eight licenses have been picked up and the
holders that have not picked up their licenses have been contacted twice at this point. If the
licenses are not picked up by 4:30 p.m. on June 30 then the establishments will be given a
citation for failure to post.


Chief Leck explained that the Police Department will be holding its 3rd Annual Citizen Police
Academy this fall. More information will be available on Facebook at a later date.


Approval of the May 24, 2017 Public Safety Committee Minutes:
Motion by Jenson, to approve the May 24, 2017 Public Safety Committee minutes, second
by Johnson. Motion carried 4-0.


Discussion and possible action regarding application by the Stoughton Chamber of
Commerce for a Special Event and Temporary “Class B”/ Class “B” Retailer’s
License for the Coffee Break Festival:
Chief Leck noted that this is an annual event and everything is in order.


Motion by Jenson, to approve the application by the Stoughton Chamber of Commerce for a
Special Event and Temporary “Class B”/ Class “B” Retailer’s License for the Coffee Break
Festival and refer to Council for consideration. Motion carried 4-0.


Discussion and possible action regarding Stoughton Municipal Code 6-2 Keeping of
animals, birds, and bee regulations; Specifically the keeping of bees:
Alderperson Jenson explained that this request had come to him. The committee agreed
that more information on how other communities handle the keeping bees would be
necessary before moving forward. The committee directed staff to contact other Cities and
Villages on their processes for the keeping of bees and any licensing involved. This item is
to come back to the committee in the future. No action taken.







Discussion and possible action regarding procedure for issuing late fees to annual
liquor license applicants:
Clerk Kropf explained that the current ordinance for liquor license does allow for the fining of
applicants when the renewal paperwork is received late. The policy that is included in the
packet reflects the ordinance, but the policy would outline the process the Clerk’s office will
follow. The committee did not like the provision that allowed for a five day grace period and
agreed that it should be removed. The committee also wanted the City attorney to review
the process and make sure it was compliant with the ordinance. Once the attorney has
reviewed it, the committee would like to review it again at the next meeting. No action was
taken.


Future agenda items:
Street Lights
Best Practices
Procedure for fining late Liquor License Applicants


Motion by Jenson, to adjourn the June 28, 2017 meeting of the Public Safety Committee,
second by Johnson. Motion carried 4-0. The meeting adjourned at 7:25 p.m.







FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
July 11, 2017 – 6:00 p.m.
Council Chambers, Public Safety Building


Present:
Tom Majewski, Lisa Reeves, Tim Swadley and Mayor Olson


Others Present:
Finance Director LaBorde and Planning Director Scheel


Absent and Excused:
Pat O’Connor


Call to order:
Vice-Chairperson Majewski called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m.


Communications:
None.


Reports:
 April 2017 Treasurer’s Report
 Contingency Report
Finance Director LaBorde explained that the April treasurer’s report balanced and that
there was no change to the contingency account. No action was taken.


R- 108-2017 - Resolution Authorizing and Directing the proper City official(s) to
authorize the use of $12,000 of contingency to fund the City Attorney’s continued
work on the update of the City of Stoughton Historic Preservation Ordinances
with the Landmarks Commission:
Motion by Swadley, to approve R-108-2017- resolution Authorizing and Directing the
proper City official(s) to authorize the use of $12,000 of contingency to fund the City
Attorney’s continued work on the update of the City of Stoughton Historic Preservation
Ordinances with the Landmarks Commission and offer to Council for consideration,
second by Majewski. Motion carried 4-0.


Approval of the June 27, 2017 Finance Committee Minutes:
Motion by Swadley, to approve the June 27, 2017 Finance Committee Meeting minutes,
second by Reeves. Motion carried 4-0.


R-107-2017 – Preliminary Resolution declaring intent to exercise Special
Assessment Powers for 2017 Street Projects – Relating to Giles Street
Mayor Olson stated that this work was completed due to the extension of utility work on
the project. Director Scheel stated that the sanitary sewer main was replaced and they
removed the lead water main and turned into a reconstruction of the segment. Once
the resolution is adopted information will be forwarded to the property owners. A public







Finance Committee Meeting Minutes – July 11, 2017 Page 2


hearing will then be held and the final resolution will be forwarded to the council for
review and approval.


Motion by Reeves, to approve R-107-2017- preliminary resolution declaring intent to
exercise Special Assessment Powers for 2017 Street Projects – Relating to Giles Street
and offer to Council for consideration, second by Swadley. Motion carried 4-0.


R–110-2017 – Resolution Approving a Relocation Plan and Replacement Housing
Payment Computation Relating to the acquisition of 2431 CTH A to facilitate
construction of a new public works facility:
Director LaBorde stated that the plan and computation are part of the requirement
related to the acquisition of the property and are necessary to be completed prior to
making an offer.


Motion by Swadley, to approve R–110-2017 – resolution Approving a relocation plan
and replacement housing payment computation relating to the acquisition of 2431 CTH
A to facilitate construction of a new public works facility and offer to Council for
consideration, second by Reeves. Motion carried 4-0.


Discussion and possible action regarding Shared Ride Taxi RFP
Director LaBorde stated that she did not have the RFP ready for tonight’s meeting and
will bring it to the next meeting. Mayor Olson asked that several items be added to the
RFP including a requirement to bring the vehicles to the City Fleet Mechanics for repair
at the expense of the company and also require that the drivers provide insurance and
complete background checks. No action was taken.


Future Agenda Items
Gold Shovel Program
Debt Management Policy
Shared Ride Taxi RFP


Adjournment
Motion by Swadley, to adjourn the July 11, 2017 meeting of the Finance Committee,
second by Reeves. Motion carried 4-0. The meeting of the Finance Committee
adjourned at 6:40 p.m.







COMMUNITY AFFAIRS/COUNCIL POLICY MEETING MINUTES
Tuesday, July 6, 2017, 6:00 p.m.
Hall of Fame Room, City of Stoughton, WI


Present: Alderpersons Lisa Reeves, Regina Hirsch, Scott Truehl, Tim Swadley, and Mayor Olson


Absent: None


Guests: Clerk Kropf, Tom Majewski, Tricia Suess, and Greg Jenson


Call to Order: The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Chairperson Reeves.


Communications:
None


Discussion and possible action regarding the amended bylaws for the Stoughton Visitor
Services:
Tricia Suess, the Chamber representative of the Stoughton Visitor Services, presented the Visitor
Services bylaws as amended. She noted that many of the changes came to fit what was already
occurring within the organization. Hirsch questioned if one person could serve in multiple capacities
within Visitor Services, in a financial responsibility stand point. The committee also questioned if the
municipal code that is cited in the bylaws is correct. Clerk Kropf indicated that she would work with
Suess to make sure that the code was correct. The Committee wanted further clarification on the
responsibility of the visitor services members and to bring back findings to the committee.


Motion by Hirsch, to table the item to clarify issues, second by Truehl. Motion carried 5-0.


Discussion and possible action regarding goals/objectives for the 2017/2018 Council
term:
Chairperson reeves noted that she had gone through the Council goals/objectives and condensed
them so that there were not any duplicates. The Committee discussed the best way to approach the
goals as far as determining which goals should be assessed first. The Committee thought that the
Council should review the goals that were listed under “Improve Efficiency” and “Internal/External
Communication” first. Clerk Kropf indicated that some of the goals/objectives have already been
addressed by staff and other committees. All members agreed that the leadership team should
review the goals and return to the Clerk if any work has already happened or commenced on
certain topics.


Motion by Swadley, to send the Council goals/objectives to the Stoughton Leadership team for their
review and input then and return to the Committee for review, second by Truehl. Motion carried 5-
0.


Approval of the June 6, 2017 Community Affairs and Council Policy Meeting Minutes:
Motion by Swadley, to approve the June 6, 2017 Community Affairs and Council Policy Meeting
Minutes, second by Hirsch. Motion carried 5-0.


Discussion and possible action regarding current Planning Commission
composition/duties and the possible creation of a Standing Planning Committee:
Majewski explained that he requested that this item be brought to the CA/CP committee for
consideration. He feels that the Planning Commission has too much power and shouldn’t be able to
make decisions without the Council’s consideration. The Planning Commission should have its own
standing committee to review items before Council. Mayor Olson explained that the Planning
Commission does have its own statutory duties and powers. The Council may not be able to remove
powers from the Planning Commission that have been granted by state law. Truehl questioned the
placement of alderpersons on the Planning Commission and wondered why each district was not







represented. The committee would like to see the ordinance of the Planning Commission
composition changed to allow for an alderperson from each district and the same number of citizens
members. Currently that would allow four alderpersons and four citizens to serve on the
commission. He noted that in case of redistricting, the ordinance language should not identify a
specific number of aldermanic districts, but note that there should be an even number of alderman
and citizen appointees.


Motion by Truehl, to amend the ordinance relating to the Planning Commission composition to allow
for each aldermanic district to be represented and to have the same number of citizen appointees
and to amend this ordinance by the 2018 re-organizational meeting, second by Hirsch. Motion
carried 5-0.


Motion by Hirsch, to request that Planning Director Scheel compile a list of items that the Planning
Commission has complete authority over and that does not require Council consideration, second by
Truehl. Motion carried 5-0.


Adjournment:
Motion by Swadley, to adjourn the July 6, 2017 meeting of the Community Affairs and Council
Policy Committee, second by Truehl. Motion carried 5-0. The Community Affairs and Council Policy
Committee adjourned at 7:33 p.m.







FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
June 27, 2017 – 5:00 p.m.
Council Chambers, Public Safety Building


Present:
Pat O’Connor, Lisa Reeves, Tim Swadley and Mayor Olson


Others Present:
Planning Director Scheel, City Attorney Dregne, Finance Director LaBorde, City Clerk
Kropf, and Vasvi Joshi (Baker Tilly)


Absent and Excused:
Tom Majewski


Call to order:
Chairperson O’Connor called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.


Communications:
None


Reports:
Contingency Report
Clerk Kropf explained there was no change to the contingency account from the May
23, 2017. No action taken.


Approval of the May 23, 2017 Finance Committee Minutes:
Motion by Swadley, to approve the May 23, 2017 Finance Committee Meeting minutes,
second by Reeves. Motion carried 4-0.


R-94-2017- Resolution authorizing and directing the proper City Official(s) to
acknowledge receipt of the 2016 City of Stoughton Audit:
Vasvi Joshi, from Baker Tilly explained that she was the manager of the City’s Audit.
She explained that the City has received a clean opinion, which is the highest opinion
that can be given. The audit showed that the City does have some internal
discrepancies that are listed in the audit, but that these show in every audit every year.
One of the discrepancies addressed the internal controls of the Finance Department,
but these issues could not be fixed without more staff to complete certain tasks. The
issue for this in 2016 was also attributed to staff departures. The audit revealed that the
City had implemented the accounting standard to WRS tracking, which was new as of
2016. Finance Director LaBorde noted that she had worked with Joshi on the audit and
is very happy with the results.


Motion by Swadley, to acknowledge the receipt of the 2016 City of Stoughton Audit and
recommend to Council for consideration, second by Reeves. Motion carried 4-0.







FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES JUNE 27, 2017


R-103-2017- Authorizing a reduction on the amount of the TIF Guarantee Letter of
Credit provided by McFarland State Bank (relating to the Kettle Park West
commercial center):
Attorney Dregne explained to the committee that the City holds a letter of credit with
Forward Development Group to secure the TIF agreement with the Kettle Park West
Development. This letter, as part of the memorandum of understanding signed in 2015,
can be reduced by a request of the developer. This request of reduction is based on the
property value that was documented in the development as of January 1, 2016. Any
additional work that has been completed in the development after January 1, 2016, has
not been calculated in the overall value, yet. The amount of the letter of credit was
originally $4,848,705 and now the letter of credit amount will be $2,263,968.37.


Motion by Reeves, to approve R-94-2017- Resolution authorizing a reduction on the
amount of the TIF Guarantee Letter of Credit provided by McFarland State Bank
(relating to the Kettle Park West commercial center) and recommend to Council for
consideration, second by Swadley. Motion carried 4-0.


R-104-2017- Approving an agreement relating to conveyance of real property and
payment of impact fees (Skaalen Sunset Home, Inc):
Attorney Dregne explained that Skaalen is building another facility on their property.
Normally with construction, applicants would need to pay the City impact fees, before
construction could occur and building permits could be issued. Skaalen’s property
encompasses land that would be a part of the Amundson Trail. This agreement would
allow the City to convey that land needed from Skaalen, for the trail, in exchange of a
reduction of $55,000 in impact fees.


Motion by Olson, to approve the agreement relating to conveyance of real property and
payment of impact fees (Skaalen Sunset Home, Inc) and recommend to Council for
consideration, second by Swadley. Motion carried 4-0.


Discussion and possible action regarding update on funds available from hiring
of Director of Information Technology & Media Services and the Director of
Finance & Economic Development:
Finance Director LaBorde explained that with the lag in time from hiring the IT Director,
the City had saved approximately $82,000 in 2016 and $183,000 in 2017 through May
1, 2017. The monies that had been budgeted for 2016 but not spent in 2016 went
directly to the City’s undesignated fund and are not available. The amount of funds
available from the lag in time for hiring the Finance Director resulted in approximately
5,500 in 2017. Swadley noted that he had asked for this explanation of funds and
would like staff to explore if there is a need for the “extra” money. No action was taken.


Discussion regarding City of Stoughton Debt schedule:
Finance Director LaBorde noted that the City currently has $29,257,922 in outstanding
debt, which is currently 58% of the City’s debt limit. She explained that the City is paying
off its outstanding debt as soon as it borrows again for the new year. No action was







FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES JUNE 27, 2017


taken.


Discussion regarding property to participate in Gold Shovel program:
No discussion occurred.


Discussion and possible action regarding authorizing the City Attorney to
continue working on possible revisions to Chapters 38 & 78 of the Municipal
Code relating to historic preservation:
Swadley indicated that he requested this to determine how much time and money may
be needed for Attorney Dregne to complete his work on the Historic Preservation
ordinances. Attorney Dregne noted that he thought he was about half way through the
process and has cost the city approximately $6,000. Dregne thought that he would need
to meet with the Landmarks Commission one more time, once the commission has
finished, it will need to be reviewed by the Planning Commission and then by the
Common Council. The whole process would take approximately $12,000 and would be
paid from the City’s contingency fund. No action taken.


Adjournment
Motion by Swadley, to adjourn the June 27, 2017 meeting of the Finance Committee,
second by Reeves. Motion carried 4-0. The meeting of the Finance Committee
adjourned at 5:56 p.m.





		2-CIP Minutes 6.26.17.pdf

		03- June 28, 2017 Public Safety Minutes.pdf

		03a-July 11, 2017 Finance Minutes.pdf

		4- July 6, 2017 CA-CP Minutes.pdf

		05-June 27 Finance Minutes.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 314 W. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


A resolution approving the Summary Report of the Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton (“RDA”)
regarding the sale of the property located at 314 West Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin (commonly known as
the Marathon site) (the “Property”).


Committee Action: RDA approved the terms of the Offer to Purchase and Counter Offers.
RDA approved 6-1, with Truehl voting noe, on July 18, 2017


Fiscal Impact: Sale of
Property for $72.000.00 and
adding improved property to
tax roll by 12/31/18 with
value of $800,000.00 +


File Number: R-119-2017 Date Introduced: August 8, 2017


RECITALS


Whereas, prior to the sale of any real property, the RDA is required, pursuant to Wis. Stat. §
66.1333(9)1.d, to provide a report as to the terms, conditions and other material conditions of the transaction
to the local legislative body for approval; and


Whereas, the RDA has negotiated the sale of the Property; and


Whereas, attached is a Summary Report which provides the terms and conditions of the transaction,
along with a detailed Critical Dates Summary and Closing Checklist, for approval by the City Council.


RESOLUTION


BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the Summary Report and attachments,
submitted by the RDA regarding the terms and conditions of the sale of 314 West Main Street in the City of
Stoughton, is approved.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote


3CL6927







11b-Report by RDA re sale


0731171522 1


SUMMARY REPORT
By the REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON


For the Sale of:


Property: 314 West Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin


Buyer: Todd D. Nelson and/or assigns


Purchase Price: $72,000.00


Closing Date: within 30 days of removal of all contingencies by Buyer


[Please see attached Critical Dates Summary and Closing Checklist for additional detail.]


Terms: After satisfying all contingencies, Buyer shall purchase the Property and construct
two four-unit residential buildings on the Property (“Project”).


Conditions:
In addition to standard contingencies such as survey, title commitment, etc., the


following conditions apply to this transaction:
Prior to Closing, Buyer shall obtain all zoning approvals to construct the


Project on the Property.
Prior to Closing, Buyer shall comply with all municipal storm water


management regulations pertaining to the Project on the Property.
Prior to Closing, Buyer to provide to Seller proof of financing in the form of


a loan commitment.
Prior to Closing, Buyer shall obtain a building permit for the Project.


Buyer shall complete construction of the Project by December 31, 2018. The
Project shall have an assessed value of at least $800,000.00.


Other Material Provisions: None


Attachments:
Critical Dates Summary for Vacant Land Offer to Purchase
Closing Checklist







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\8-8-2017\11c-Critical Dates Summary & Closing Checklist (City of Stoughton sale


of 314 W. Main St. to Todd Nelson.doc 1


CRITICAL DATES SUMMARY
VACANT LAND OFFER TO PURCHASE


Seller: Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton


Buyer: Todd D. Nelson and/or assigns


Property: 314 W. Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin


Project: Construction of two four-unit residential buildings


Purchase price: $72,000.00


Acceptance Date: July 24, 2017


Closing Date: within 30 days of removal of all of the contingences by Buyer


Contingency Description Due Date Status


Earnest Money


(lines 10-11 of Offer)


Buyer to deliver earnest money in amount of
$5,000 to listing broker within 5 day s of
acceptance of Offer.


Saturday, July 29, 2017


Seller’s Property
Documents


(Item 5 on Exhibit A to
Offer)


Counter-Offer No. 1


Seller to provide all documents in Seller’s
possession relating to Property’s title or
condition, including surveys, easement
documents, compaction reports, governmental
authority agreements, development agreements,
agreements for deferred assessments or
development fees, unrecorded deed restrictions
in connection with environmental condition of
the Property and municipal notices and orders
within 10 days after acceptance of Offer.


This contingency is deemed satisfied unless
Buyer within the Due Diligence Period (see
below) delivers to Seller a written reasonable
objection to information contained in the
Property Documents.


Thursday, August 3,
2017


Sunday, October 22,
2017


Title Insurance
Commitment


(page 4 on Exhibit A to
Offer and Counter-Offer
No. 1)


Seller to provide title insurance commitment to
Purchaser within 15 days after acceptance of
Offer.


Tuesday, August 8, 2017







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\8-8-2017\11c-Critical Dates Summary & Closing Checklist (City of Stoughton sale


of 314 W. Main St. to Todd Nelson.doc 2


Contingency Description Due Date Status


Title Objection Notice


(page 4 on Exhibit A to
Offer and Counter-Offer
No. 1)


This is deemed satisfied unless Buyer delivers
written notice to Seller of any objections to title
within 15 days of receipt of the title insurance
commitment.


Wednesday, August 23,
2017 (if title insurance
commitment received on
August 8, 2017)


Covenants and
Restrictions


(Item 4 on Exhibit A to
Offer)


Buyer to review within 30 day after Seller’s
submission, the private recorded covenants and
restrictions affecting title to the Property.


Survey


(Item 1 on Exhibit A to
Offer)


Buyer to obtain survey map within 90 days after
acceptance of the Offer.


Sunday, October 22,
2017


Due Diligence


(Item 2 on Exhibit A to
Offer)


Buyer to conduct its due diligence, including
tests and inspections to determine the suitability
of the premises for Buyer’s intended use, within
90 days after acceptance of the Offer, including
but not limited to: (1) zoning; (2) easements,
restrictions and covenants of record; (3) private
easements, restrictions and covenants of record;
(4) floodplains; (5) soils; (6) environmental
conditions (7) municipal, state or federal
requirements; (8) review of materials described
in paragraph 2 of Ex. A to the Offer; (9)
utilities; (10) Phase I and/or Phase II
environmental audits; (11) obtaining all licenses
and permits including any zoning approval
needed from the City of Stoughton; and (12)
approval by Buyer’s Contractor/Architect.


Sunday, October 22,
2017







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\8-8-2017\11c-Critical Dates Summary & Closing Checklist (City of Stoughton sale


of 314 W. Main St. to Todd Nelson.doc 3


Contingency Description Due Date Status


Seller’s Documents


(Item 2A. on Exhibit A to
Offer)


During Due Diligence Period, Seller to provide
Buyer with all documents and information in
Seller’s possession, including but not limited to:


i. All environmental reports


ii. All DNR closure letters, including but
not limited to information regarding all
prior remediation


iii. Inventory of equipment, fixates and
personal property (N/A)


iv. Copies of all leases affecting equipment,
signs or other personal property (N/A)


v. All documents related to title or
condition of the Property


vi. All surveys, easement documents, or
other documents affecting the Property,
including, but not limited to compaction
reports.


vii. All agreements with governmental
authorities related to the Property,
including development agreements,
agreements for deferred assessments or
development fees, unrecorded deed
restrictions, municipal notices and
orders.


Terminates upon
completion of Buyer’s
Due Diligence Period;
Sunday, October 22,
2017


Utilities


(Item 2B. on Exhibit A to
Offer)


Buyer to obtain satisfactory evidence that water,
sewer, electrical, telephone and natural gas
utilities are available at the boundary of the
Property; that street and associated assess will be
proved to the site and that Buyer will not incur
any off-site costs for the installation of utilities,
grading of the Property, street or sidewalk
improvements or any impact fees


Sunday, October 22,
2017


Review of Seller’s
Environmental Reports


(Item 2C on Exhibit A to
Offer)


Buyer to review all environmental reports for the
Property which Seller has in its possession


Sunday, October 22,
2017


Comprehensive Plan


(Counter-Offer No. 3)


City of Stoughton to adopt a revised
Comprehensive Plan which allows multi-family
housing in the area that includes the Property.


Prior to closing


Zoning Approvals


(Counter-Offer No. 3)


Buyer to obtain all zoning approvals needed
from the City of Stoughton to construct two
multi-family housing buildings on the Property
as contemplated by the Project.


Prior to closing







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\8-8-2017\11c-Critical Dates Summary & Closing Checklist (City of Stoughton sale


of 314 W. Main St. to Todd Nelson.doc 4


Contingency Description Due Date Status


Storm Water
Management
Regulations


(Counter-Offer No. 3)


Buyer to comply with any and all municipal
storm water management regulations that apply
to construction of two multi-family housing
buildings on the Property


Prior to closing


Financing


(Counter-Offer No. 3)


Buyer to provide Seller with evidence of
financing for the purchase of the Property and
construction of the Project in the form of a loan
commitment or similar evidence.


Prior to closing


Building Permit


(Counter-Offer No. 3)


Buyer shall obtain a building permit for the
Project.


Prior to closing







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\8-8-2017\11c-Critical Dates Summary & Closing Checklist (City of Stoughton sale


of 314 W. Main St. to Todd Nelson.doc 5


CLOSING CHECKLIST


Responsible Parties:


Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton (Peter Sveum) Seller


Stafford Rosenbaum LLP (Matthew P. Dregne; Michelle M. Affatati) SR (Attorneys for Seller)


Todd T. Nelson and/or his assigns Buyer


Lee & Associates of Madison, LLC (Blake George) Broker


First American Title Insurance Company Title Co.


RESPONSIBLE
PARTY


DRAFTED/
ORDERED


EXECUTED/
DELIVERED


A. PRE-CLOSING
MATTERS/DOCUMENTS


1. Vacant Land Offer to Purchase Seller/Buyer X X


a. Counter-Offer No. 1 by Seller Seller/Buyer X


b. Counter-Offer No. 2 by Buyer Seller/Buyer X X


c. Counter-Offer No. 3 by Seller Seller/Buyer X X


2. Order title insurance commitment


3. Review title insurance commitment SR


4. Confirm form of marked-up title
commitment with Title Co.


SR


5. Updated Title Commitment Title Co.


6. Arrange for Property insurance Buyer


B. CLOSING MATTERS/DOCUMENTS


7. Special Warranty Deed SR


8. Electronic Real Estate Transfer Tax Return SR/Title Co. N/A


9. Certified Resolutions of Seller authorizing
sale and directing execution of deed (if
required by title commitment)


SR/Seller


10. Seller’s Affidavit SR/Title Co.


11. Settlement Statement


a. Buyer to receive $5,000 credit from Seller
at closing for street openings that need to
be performed to close the existing utilities.


Title Co.


12. Gap Affidavit SR/Title Co.


13. 1099-S Reporting Form Title Co.







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\8-8-2017\11c-Critical Dates Summary & Closing Checklist (City of Stoughton sale


of 314 W. Main St. to Todd Nelson.doc 6


RESPONSIBLE
PARTY


DRAFTED/
ORDERED


EXECUTED/
DELIVERED


14. Closing instruction letter SR


15. Delivery of closing funds to Title Co. Buyer


16. Disbursement of proceeds; Cash to Seller Title Co.


C. POST-CLOSING MATTERS


17. Record documents with Dane County Register
of Deeds’ office (Special Warranty Deed,
Releases/Satisfactions)


Title Co.


18. Buyer to substantially complete the Project ,
as determined by a Final Inspection for
Occupancy by City of Stoughton Building
Inspectors, which is to have a total assessed
value of at least $800,000, no later than
December 31, 2018


Buyer


19. Seller has right to purchase the Property for
90% of the purchase price if Buyer fails to
construct the Project and/or other
improvements on the Property in compliance
with the terms of the Offer. This provision
terminates when Buyer breaks ground and
begins construction on the Project.


Seller/Buyer





		11a-R-119-2017-Resolution to Approve Sale of 314 W Main Street by RDA.pdf

		11b-Report by RDA re sale.pdf

		11c-Critical Dates Summary & Closing Checklist (City of Stoughton sale of 314 W. Main St. to Todd Nelson.pdf






, Stafford Rosen ba u FII *p
åtlr]r:lçys


Menber of LEGUS Intemational Netuork of Lau Fims


To Mayor Donna Olson
Common Council


From Matthew P. Dregne, City Attorney


Date August 4,2017


Re Project Review Approval Process - 305-315 East Main Street


INrRopucrroN


At its Jlly 26, 2017 meeting, the Common Council directed me to provide
responses to a number questions relating to the project review approval process, and how
that process has unfolded regarding the property located at 305-315 East Main Street (the
"Property"). This memorandum addresses those questions.


STATBiT¿BNT OF FACTS


The Property is zoned CB - Central Business, and is located in the Downtown
Design Overlay District. The Property is located in a "National Register of Historic
Places Historic District." The Property has not been designated as a local landmark
under Chapter 38 of the Municipal Code, and is not located in a locally designated
historic district.


On approximately September 26, 2016, following complaints regarding the
condition of the building, City of Stoughton Zoning Administrator Michael Stacey
contacted building owner Tim Homar. Problematic conditions included deterioration of
the roof and paint peeling off exterior walls. Mr. Homar told Mr. Stacey that he believed
repairing the building was not economically feasible. On September 27, 2016,
Mr. Homar submitted an application to the Planning Department for a permit to demolish
the building. Because the Property contributes to a National Register of Historic Places
District, on September 27,2016, Mr. Stacey sent notice of the proposed demolition to the
State Historical Society.


L:\DOCS\005649\002090\l\4EMOS\3DR8805.DOCX
0804171 143


Madison Office Milwaukee Office


1200 North May{airRoad
Suite 410


Milwaukee, \íisconsin
y226-)282


222 \flest \flashington Avenue


P,O. Box 1784


Madison, Visconsin


5370t-17U


608,256,0226


888.655.4752


Fax608.259.2600


wwrv,staffordlaw.com


4r4.982.2850
888.655.4752


Fax414j822889
www.staffordlaw.com







In early November 2016, Mr. Stacey learned that Dennis and Amy Kittleson
purchased the Property, and wanted the City to continue processing the pending
application for a permit authorizing demolition.


On January 9, 2017, the Plan Commission considered the following agenda item:
"Dennis and Amy Kittleson request project review approval to demolish the building at


315 E. Main Street." At the meeting, the Kittlesons said they intended to'oremove the
building and have a public gathering park-like greenspace." After some discussion, the
Plan Commission tabled the matter and requested that the City Attorney review the
request. The January 9 meeting did not include a public hearing on the application.


Following the January 9 Plan Commission meeting, I issued a memorandum dated
January 20, 2017. The memorandum contained the following summary in its
introducto ry p ar agr aph


This memo addresses two questions relating to the proposed
demolition of a building in the downtown design overlay
zoning district. One question asks what procedure applies to
a request to demolish a building in the downtown design
overlay zoning district. In my opinion, the procedures
applicable to conditional use permits must be followed,
except where Sec. 78-913 specifies a different procedure.
The second question asks whether demolition of the building
and converting the site to open space (rather than replacing
the building) is allowable under existing regulations. In my
opinion, such demolition is allowable if approved by the plan
commission.


Following the issuance of my January 20, 2017 memorandum, Mr. Stacey
determined that the Kittlesons should submit a new application using the standard
conditional use permit form included as an appendix to the City's ordinances.


On January 24, 2017, Dennis Kittleson submitted the standard conditional use
permit application form, and paid the standard conditional use permit application fee of
$400. The application included the following statement:


I (Dennis Kittleson) am writing this letter to address the form
that is used for the Conditional Use Permit for the property at
the address of 305 - 315 East Main Street Stoughton WI
53589. The intention is to remove the existing building and
then convert the property into a gathering area style of park.
The intended use is to keep it as an open area that could be
used for various activities. It will be privately owned with the


2
L:\DOCS\005649\002090\À4EMOS\3DR8805.DOCX
0804171 143







intention that it will be open to the public to use as long as it
is respected.


A public hearing on the Kittleson's application was scheduled for a March 13 Plan
Commission meeting. The public hearing could not be conducted at that time due to
overlapping meetings.


On March 17,2017, following further discussions with City Staff, I sent a letter to
Dennis Kittleson requesting that he supplement his application with additional
information required by City ordinances. On April 6, 2017, Dennis Kittleson provided
additional information to the City.


On April I0, 2016, the Plan Commission conducted a public hearing on the
application. Following the public hearing, the Plan Commission adopted a resolution that
concluded as follows:


Be it resolved by the City of Stoughton Planning Commission
that the application for Project Approval to demolish the
structure at 305-315 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI is


approved contingent on the applicants bringing a detailed
landscaping plan back to the Planning Commission for
approval.


On July 25, 2017, the Common Council discussed a variety of issues regarding
this matter. The Council asked me to respond to several questions. The Council also
asked City staff to verify whether the Property is or is not located in a locally designated
historic district created in accordance with Chapter 38 of the Municipal Code.


DrscussroN


Has the processíng of the Project Review demolition request been improper
because Tím Homar applíed þr a demolítion permít, but the Kíttlesons did
not?


The Council asked me to determine whether the processing of the Kittleson's
request for Project Review is in some way defective or improper on the grounds that the
Kittlesons did not apply for such review. There apparently is a belief that Tim Homar's
September 27 ,2016 application was transferred or assigned to the Kittlesons, and that the
Kittlesons did not submit their own application.


As discussed above, the Kittlesons submitted an application for Project Review
and paid a $400 application fee on January 24, 2017. Consequently, at least from
January 24, 2017, this matter has proceeded based on the application submitted by the


I


aJ
L:\DOCS\005649\002090\À4EMOS\3DR8805.DOCX
0804171 143







Kittlesons and not based on the application submitted by Tim Homar. All of the
substantive actions that have been taken on this matter by the Plan Commission were
taken after January 24,2017 .


Because the Kittlesons did apply for Project Review approval, it is not necessary
in this case to determine whether the Kittlesons could have proceeded based on the
application submitted by Tim Homar. There also is no basis for challenging the actions
taken on the Kittleson's application, based on a claim that they did not apply for project
review.


Must all procedurøl requìrements applicable to condítíonal use permits be


þllowed in connectíon wíth an applicationfor "Project Review" under Sec.


7B-9 I 3?


"Project Review" approval is required to demolish a structure in the Downtown
Design Overlay District. The procedure for "Project Review" is discussed in multiple
sections of Section 78-913. First, Sections 78-913 (3Xc) and 78-913(aXc) each provide a
detailed (and almost identical) description of the roles of the zoning administrator,
landmarks commission and plan commission in conducting a project review. Section 78-
913(a)(c) states as follows:


Applications which involve modification to the physical
configuration of a locally recognized propertyl (such as the
erection of a new building, the demolition of an existing
building, or the addition or removal of bulk to an existing
building) are subject to project review by the zoning
administrator, the landmarks commission, and the plan
commission. The zoning administrator shall serve as the
liaison between the applicant, the landmarks commission, and
the plan commission in facilitating the thorough and
expedient review of an application, and shall ensure that the
technical and procedural requirements of the Zoning
Ordinance are met. The landmarks commission shall serve as


the recommending body to the plan commission for locally-
recognized landmarks. The plan commission shall serve as


the final discretionary review body on aesthetics and site
design, and shall focus its review on the application's
compliance with sound aesthetic, land use, site design and
economic revitalization practices. In part, this effort shall be


I The purpose of this reference to "locally recognized property" is unclear. This specific language is not
included in Sec. 78-913(3)(c), It is also clear from the remaining language in this section and elsewhere that project
review is not limited to locally recognized landmarks.


L:\DOCS\005649\002090MEMOS\3DR8805.DOCX
0804171 143


2


4







guided by the comprehensive plan. (Refer to the procedure
summary chart in Appendix F).


It is significant that Sections 78-913(3)(c) and (4Xc) each clearly and
unambiguously state that the zoning administrator, landmarks commission and plan
commission are the city official and city commissions that are responsible for conducting
Project Reviews. These sections also expressly state that the plan commission "shall
serve as the final discretionary review body...." It is also significantthat this section
provides no role for the common council in the Project Review process.


Section 78-913(4)(c) also expressly states that the reader should "refer to the
procedure summary chart in Appendix F." Appendix F outlines the procedure for each of
the three types of review that can be required in the Downtown Design Overlay District.
Appendix F describes the roles to be played by the zoning administrator, landmarks
commission and plan commission, and provides no role for the common council in any of
those reviews.


Section 78-913(5) also addresses the roles of the zoning administrator, landmarks
commission and plan commission. That section expressly authorizes these specific
officials to make recommendations or require modifications to applications. Again, this
section makes no reference to the common council playing any role in the Project Review
process.


Notwithstanding the above-described language, procedural questions have been
raised because of language in Section 78-913(a)(c)1., which states that "project review
proposals shall follow procedures for conditional use permits, refer to section 78-905."
There are at least two important ways in which the procedures for conditional use permits
are in conflict with Project Review procedures specifically described in Sec. 78-913.
First, the conditional use permit procedure provides for the plan commission to make a


recommendation to the common council, and for the common council to make a final
decision. That process is directly contrary to the express provisions of Sec. 78-913,
which state that the plan commission "shall serve as the final discretionary review
body...." Second, the conditional use permit procedure provides no role for the
landrnarks commission. That too would be directly contrary to the express language of
Sec. 78-913, under which the landmarks commission serves "as the recommending body
to the plan commission for locally-recognized landmarks."


'Where two parts of an ordinance that apply to the same subject are in conflict, it is
necessary to resort to rules of statutory construction to determine legislative intent. In the
interpretation of ordinances, the rules of statutory construction apply. Marrís v. Cíty of
Cedarburg, 176 Wis. 2d 14,32,498 N.W.2d 842 (1993).


5
I-:\DOCS\005649\002090\NiIEMOS\3DR8805. DOCX
0804171 143







Under one rule of statutory construction, where there is conflicting language, the
more specific language applies. State v. Anthony D.8,2000 WI 94 T 11, 237 Wis.2d I.
The express language of Sections 78-913(3)(c) and (aXc) provides a more specific
statements regarding which officials have authority over Project Review than the
statement that project review shall follow procedures for conditional use permits. The
language in those sections is more specific than the directive to "follow procedures for
conditional use permits." The more specific language should therefore control.


The Wisconsin Supreme Court has provided the following additional guidance for
interpreting statutes and ordinances:


Context is important to meaning. So, too, is the structure of
the statute in which the operative language appears.
Therefore, statutory language is interpreted in the context in
which it is used; not in isolation but as part of a whole; in
relation to the language of surrounding or closely related
statutes; and reasonably, to avoid absurd or unreasonable
results.


State ex rel. Kalal v. Círcuit Court þr Dane County,2Tl Wis. 2d 633 (2004) (citations
omitted).


The requirement that project review proposals follow procedures for conditional
use permits must be understood within the context and structure of Sec. 78-913. Multiple
elements of that ordinance clearly say that Project Review is conducted by the zoning
administrator, the landmarks commission, and the plan commission, and provide no role
for the colnmon council. The requirement to follow conditional use permit procedures
cannot be read in isolation, and must be construed within the broader context of Sec. 78-
913. If the ordinance is read in isolation to require full compliance with conditional use
procedures, then other important and express language in Sec. 78-905 would be rendered
meaningless. In particular, the landmarks commission would not serve as a


recommending body to the plan commission (because that is not part of the conditional
use process), and the plan commission would not serve as the final discretionary review
body (because under the conditional use process the plan commission is purely advisory
to the common council). Interpretations that render express provisions of the ordinances
meaningless should be avoided. Beldingv. Demoulin,2014 WI 8,ll 17,352 Wis. 2d359.


Finally, the common council specifically requested that I consider the fact that the
ordinance uses the word "shall," in saying that Project Review proposals "shall follow
procedures for conditional use permits." It was pointed out that under Sec. 78-013, the
word "shall" is characterized as mandatory.


6
L:\DOCS\005649\002090\À4EMOS\3DR8805.DOCX
0804t71 t43







The use of the word "shall" in this context does not change my interpretation of
the ordinance. First, Section 78-013 begins by stating as follows:


The interpretation of this Chapter shall abide by the
provisions and rules of this Section, except where the context
clearly requires otherwíse, or where the result would clearly
be ínconsistent with the apparent intent of thß Chapter.


(Emphasis added.) As discussed above, in context, it is not appropriate to interpret the
ordinance to require full compliance with the conditional use permit process, and doing
so would be inconsistent with the express and specific language of Sec. 78-913,
Furthermore, Sections 78-913(3)(c) and (a)(c) also use the word ooshall." They say that
the landmarks commission "shall" serve as the recommending body to the Plan
Commission on locally-recognized landmarks, and that the plan commission "shall"
serve as the final discretionary review body. Clearly, the use of the word "shall," with
reference to the conditional use process, does not mean that the conditional use process
trumps the remaining language in the ordinance, which also uses the wordooshall."


For all of the above reasons, in my opinion, Project Review must follow the
procedures for conditional use permits, except where Sec. 78-913 expressly and
specifically prescribes a different procedure. The notice and hearing requirements that
apply to condition use permits must be followed. The plan commission makes the final
decision.


3. How can the Property be used after the buildíng ís removedfrom the síte?


Questions have been raised about how the Property can be used after the building
is removed from the site. In particular, questions have been raised about language in the
Kittleson's application indicating that the Property would be open to the public for use as


a park of some kind. In my opinion, the Property may lawfully be maintained as a vacant
lot. I also conclude that public use of the Property for passive (or active) recreational
purposes (as one might expect in a "park") is not an expressly recognized permitted use
of the Property. Consequently, that use would not be permitted without a formal
determination by the Zonine Administrator that it is a permitted use on the Property.


The Property is zoned CB - Central Business, and is located in the Downtown
Design Overlay District. The use of land in the CB District is governed by multiple
sections of the Zoning Ordinance, as follows:


Section 78-105(4)(c) sets forth a list of (1) principal land uses permitted by
right, (2) principal land uses permitted as a conditional use, (3) accessory
land uses permitted by right, (4) accessory land uses permitted as


conditional uses, and (5) allowable temporary uses.


a.


L:\DOCS\005649\002090\À4EMOS\3 DR8805.DOCX
0804171 143 7







Section 78-206 states that land uses that are not listed in the Zoning
Ordinance are not necessarily excluded from locating in a particular zoning
district. The zoning administrator has the authority to determine whether a
specific land use is lawful on a site, even if that land use is not listed as a
permitted or conditional use in that zoning district. The procedures and
standards relating to such a determination are set forth in Zoning Ordinance
$ 78- e1 1.


All land uses are subject to the general land use requirements in Section 78-
206, the general requirements of the specific zoning district in which they
are located, and any additional requirements applicable to an overlay
district (such as the Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District). Zoning
Ordinance Section 7 S-202(l).


This memorandum evaluates two possible scenarios for how the Property might be
used after the building is removed. First, the Property is evaluated as a vacant lot
following removal of the existing building. Second, the Property is evaluated assuming
the owner allows the public to enter the Property and engage in "passive outdoor
recreation" as that use is defined in Zoning Ordinance $ 78-206(3)(a).


Under the first scenario, the building on the Property is removed from the site, and
the site is rnaintained as a vacant lot. No business, commercial, residential, industrial,
recreational or other activities occur on the Property. Maintaining a vaçafit lot is not a
recognized land use in the Zoning Ordinance. See Zoning Ordinance $ 78-206. I have
identified two ways that this circumstance might be evaluated under the Zoning
Ordinance. Under one interpretation, maintaining avacant lot is not a "use" of property.
If it is not a "use" of property, then it is not subject to regulation as a use of property.
Under a second interpretation, maintaining avacan| lot is ause of property. If it is ause
of property, it is only lawful if it is authorized by the Zoning Ordinance.2


In my opinion, maintaining a vacant lot is not a use of property. I have several
reasons for this conclusion. First, Íhe Zoning Ordinance defines "use" as "[t]he purpose
or activity for which land or any building thereon is designed, arranged, or intended, or
for which it is occupied or maintained." Zoning Ordinance $ 78-015. This definition
indicates that oouse" requires some kind of activity on the property. Under this scenario,
there is no activity taking place on the property. Second, maintainin g a vacant lot is not a


expressly recognized, allowable land use in the Zoning Ordinance. Consequently, if
maintainingavacant lot is a "use" of land, then every vacant lot in the City is currently in


z ¡ use may be authorized by the Zoning Ordinance either expressly, or by a determination of the Zoning
Administrator pursuant to $ 78-91 1.


b


c


Lr\DOCS\005649\002090\MEMOS\3DR8805.DOCX
0804 l7l 143 8







violation of the Zoning Ordinance. I don't think that result is intended by the Zoning
Ordinance.


An analogous situation is presented by the site of the former Marathon Station on
Main Street. The RDA purchased that site and demolished the building. The site has
been vacant for a number of years, while the RDA has attempted to find a buyer. If
maintaining a vacant lot is a "use" of property, then that property has been used in
violation of the Zoning Ordinance for years. I don't think that result is intended by the
Zoning Ordinance.


Under the second scenario, the site is maintained as an open grassed area that may
include additional plantings or a garden, and the owner allows the public to use the
Property for passive recreational purposes. The Zoning Ordinance establishes a land use
category called "passive outdoor public recreational," defined as follows:


Passive outdoor public recreational land uses include all
recreational land uses located on public property which
involve passive recreational activities. Such land uses include
arboretums, natural areas, wildlife areas, hiking trails, bike
trails, cross country ski trails, horse trails, open grassed areas
not associated with any particular active recreational land use
... picnic areas, picnic shelters, gardens, fishing areas, and
similar land uses.


Passive outdoor public recreation is a permitted use in the CB Central Business
District. However, the definition of this land use indicates that it needs to take place on
"on public property." Consequently, this land use is not expressly recognized as a
"permitted use" on private property. That is not necessarily the end of the story,
however. The Zoning Administrator has the authority, under $ 78-911, to interpret the
Zoning Ordinance, and to determine that a particular land use is allowable, even where
that land use is not expressly authorized. Until such a determination is made, use of the
Property for passive outdoor public recreation is not allowed.


CoNcr.usroN


The Kittlesons applied for Project Review approval. The Plan Commission is
responsible for acting on the Project Review application. If the building is removed, the
Property may lawfully be maintained as a vacant lot. It may not be used for passive
outdoor public recreation unless and until the Zoning Administrator determines that such
use is allowable.


9
L:\DOCS\005649\00209o\l\4EMOS\3DR8805. DOCX
0804171154








CITY OF STOUGHTON
Administrative Services


381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 608.873.6677 fax 608.873.5519


MEMORANDUM


August 3, 2017


To: Common Council


From: Lana Kropf, City Clerk


RE: Historic Districts Designation within the City


At the July 25, 2017 Common Council meeting, the following motion was made:


“Motion by Engelberger, to direct the City Clerk to determine whether or not the
downtown design overlay zoning district is in fact a historic district under the provisions
in Chapter 38 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code or under the national registry of
historic places, second by Hirsch. Motion carried 9-0.”


I feel that it is first important to understand the designation of the Main Street Historic
District and the Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District.


Main Street Historic District:
The Main Street Historic District was first designated as such on the National Register on
October 21, 1982 and on the State Register on January 1, 1989. This area encompassed
Main Street from the Yahara River to Forest Street. It was later amended to include Main
Street from Forest Street to Fifth Street. The amended designation was made on the
National Register on May 12, 1994 and the State Register on April 23, 1993.


Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District:
The Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District was created in Chapter 78 of the Zoning
code and adopted on July 23, 2009. This district used the existing designation of the Main
Street Historic District as its boundary lines. This zoning code identifies another layer of
regulations when building/business owners wish to update an existing Main Street
building façade. This code also applies to any newly constructed buildings within the
district. While the Downtown Design Overlay Zoning Code does identify how to address
historically significant structures from a maintenance stand point, it does not designate
any building or set of buildings as a historic landmark.


Historic Preservation- Chapter 38:
Chapter 38 of the Stoughton Municipal Code establishes procedures for the designation
of local “landmarks,” “landmark sites, and “historic districts.” Chapter 38 authorizes the







CITY OF STOUGHTON
Administrative Services


381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 608.873.6677 fax 608.873.5519


Landmarks Commission to recommend that the city council designate landmarks,
landmark sites, and historic districts. In order to create a local historic district, the
Landmarks Commission is required to prepare, in ordinance form, an historic
preservation and land usage plan for the district. That ordinance would then need to be
approved by the City Council. Based on the information I have been able to gather from
the City’s Planning Department, and from my office, the City Council has not designated
any local “historic districts.”


Summary:
For these above reasons, it is apparent that the Downtown Design Overlay Zoning
District is in a historic district under National Registry designation, but it is not and has
never in a locally designated historic district under the provisions of Chapter 38 of the
Stoughton Municipal Code.








Meeting of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON


Date/Time: Tuesday, July 25, 2017 @ 7:00 p.m.


Location: Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building)
321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin


Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Michael
Engelberger, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson, Dennis Kittleson,
Tom Majewski, Pat O’Connor, Lisa Reeves, and Scott Truehl


CALL TO ORDER


Mayor Olson called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.


Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:


Clerk Kropf called the roll and noted that eleven persons were present with Boersma being absent and
excused.


Mayor Olson congratulated Clerk Kropf on her graduation from the UW-Green Bay Municipal Clerks
Institute a couple of weeks ago. She noted that Kropf received a full scholarship, from the Wisconsin
Municipal Clerk’s Association (WMCA) and Workhorse Software that covered her tuition.


Mayor Olson noted that several visitors from Norway had come to City Hall and that some of the
visitors will be collaborating with the Stoughton Norwegian Dancers. They will be showcasing their
work at the Stoughton Opera House on Thursday, July 27, 2017.


Kittleson asked if the items relating to the creation of an Economic Development Director positon and
the Planning Commission’s process on demolition of historic buildings can be switched. The Council
agreed.


Swadley asked that citizens watch the joint Committee of the Whole and Stoughton Area School Board
meeting on WSTO’s website. He thanked Engelberger, Johnson and Jenson as well as the school board
members for volunteering to serve on the ad hoc committee for each body. Swadley noted that he talked
to Movin’ Out about the RDA development and he would offer more information later in the meeting.


Presentation of Stoughton Highway Trailer Building Complex Survey Report by Stephen Mar-Pohl of
In-site Consulting Architects
Stephen Mar-Pohl gave the Council a detailed overview of the Stoughton Highway Trailer Building
Complex Survey Report. He commented on the buildings uniqueness relating to its age and noted that
many areas of the building are deteriorating. He noted that he has been tasked to determine if the
blacksmith shop building can stay, with others removed. He noted that it could be done, but would need
to be completed in a way that would not jeopardize the remaining structure as they are connected. He
explained the different options available based on the level of restoration. Option one would be the
adaptive reuse of the entire complex which would preserve the building. That cost would be
approximately $2.25M- $2.5M and this would simply stabilize the structure with no internal finishing.
Option two would be a selective demolition of all but the “Blacksmith Shop”. This option would allow
for significant restoration of the junction of the blacksmith shop, and would stabilize the structure with
no internal finishing. This project would cost approximately $1.3M- $1.5M. Option three would be a







complete demolition of all buildings and would cost approximately $1M-$1.2M. He noted that these are
approximate numbers and the Council may consider more options at a later date.


Minutes and Reports: The following minutes and reports were entered into the record:
 Redevelopment Authority (6/14/2017), Commission on Aging ( 6/6/2017), Library Board


(6/21/2017), Housing Authority (4/12/2017), Landmarks Commission (6/22/2017), Parks &
Recreation Committee (1/25/2017 & 3/22/2017), Planning Commission (6/12/2017), Public
Works Committee (6/20/2017), Tree Commission (4/12/2017), and Utilities Committee
(6/19/2017)


 May 2017 Treasurer’s Report
 Utilities Financial Report


Public Comment Period:
No persons registered to speak.


CONSENT AGENDA


A. July 11, 2017 Council Minutes
B. July 18, 2017 Joint Committee of the Whole/RDA Minutes


Motion by O’Connor, to approve the consent agenda, second by Truehl. Motion carried 11-0.


OLD BUSINESS


Status report regarding the street closure of East South Street and designation of the Highway Trailer
Building as a local Landmark:
Mayor Olson explained that she met with the City’s Risk Management, Emergency Personnel, Public
Works, and the Planning Departments to close East South Street. Human Resources Director
Gillingham noted that CVMIC agreed with the road closure and that the road should be completely
closed. Police Chief Leck noted that there is currently bike and pedestrian traffic through that area. He
noted that the street would need to be closed to that type of traffic as well. Fire Chief Wegner noted that
the fire Department has witnessed accelerated deterioration and the building needs to be closed tighter to
avoid any persons entering the building.


Swadley asked if the agenda would allow the Council to make a directive to the RDA, more specifically
if the RDA would start the RFP process for the demolition of that area and if they could reach out to
other developer’s regarding its restoration. Attorney Dregne noted that the request would have to remain
within the scope of the agenda and it would depend on what Alderperson Swadley is specifically
looking for with his motion,.


Mr. Mar-Pohl noted that if a structure is on a national register of historic places then it could be
demolished, but if it is designated as a local landmark it cannot be removed per local ordinance. The
Landmarks Commission will be holding a public hearing on August 10, 2017 to discuss this building’s
possible historic designation. Utilities Director Kardasz wondered if the building had a fire in the past
and if that was evident in Mr. Mar-Pohl’s determination. He noted that he was not able to enter the
building, but did see deterioration that could be attributed to a fire. Engelberger asked that the RDA
contact James Gorman to see if they would honor their previous bid to restore it. Truehl noted that he,
along with Alderperson Hirsch, will be bringing that option to the RDA at the next meeting. Hirsch







noted that she would like to know what the Council would like to do with the building and give that
recommendation to the RDA.


Attorney Dregne noted that the Council and RDA interaction does have a formal process through State
Statute. The RDA has been charged with preparing a redevelopment plan and the RDA has followed
that process. The City Council has the authority to approve it and the current plan has been approved.
He noted that the RDA should come back to the Council with an amended redevelopment plan for
Council’s input. That would allow both bodies to collaborate together for the ultimate end result. Truehl
would like to reach out to James Gorman to inquire if his company would restore those buildings and
then the RDA can move forward with the redevelopment plan. He would also ask that the building not
be designated as a landmark at this time, as not to hinder the RDA/Council process to move forward
with the project.


Motion by Engelberger, requesting that the Council support the designation of the Stoughton Highway
Trailer Building as a local landmark, second by Johnson. It is the understanding of the Council that this
motion is not an official designation of the Stoughton Highway Trailer as a local landmark, but rather
support of its designation. Attorney Dregne noted that the Council cannot designate the Stoughton
Highway Trailer Building as a landmark without following the public hearing process as dictated by
local ordinance.


Substitute motion by Hirsch, requesting that the Council express its support for the preservation of the
Stoughton Highway Trailer Building Complex, second by Kittleson. This motion replaces the original
motion as made by Alderperson Engelberger. Motion carried 8-3, with Truehl, Jenson, and O’Connor
voting noe.


Discussion and possible action regarding approval of funding for additional fencing and barricades for
the East South Street closure.
Motion by O’Connor, to approve the funding of the additional fencing and barricades for the East South
Street Closure, second by Truehl. O’Connor noted that the cost would be approximately $1,700 and
would be paid for through the contingency fund. This fence is to be rented and the price is for a six
month rental period. Motion carried 11-0.


R-83-2017- Authorizing and Directing the proper City official(s) to Award the Bid for the
Milfab Site Demolition in the Riverfront Redevelopment Area Located at 433 East South Street,
Stoughton, WI.


Motion by Truehl, to table until the State budget is approved and adopted, second by
Engelberger. Motion carried 11-0.


NEW BUSINESS


R-112-2017 – Resolution to authorize and direct the proper City official(s) to enter into an
agreement with R.G. Huston Co., Inc. for the 2017 Business Park Detention Basin Contract 2-
2017.


Motion by O’Connor, to approve R-112-2017, second by Truehl. O’Connor noted that this work
will be done at the NAFA site and needs to be done by the end of the year. He noted that the







budgeted amount for this work was $500,000 and the bid came in at $478,714.25. Motion carried
11-0.


R-113-2017 – Resolution to authorize and direct the proper City official(s) to enter into an
agreement with Raymond P. Cattell, Inc. of Madison for the 2017 Troll Beach Parking Lot
Contract 3-2017.


Motion by O’Connor, to approve R-113-2017, second by Truehl. O’Connor noted that this
project came in under bid. Motion carried 11-0.


*** The Council may meet in closed session per State Statute 19.85 (1)(e) to consider the proposed
2018 Police Department Union Contract. The Council may reconvene in open session to take action on
matters discussed in closed session.


***R-114-2017- Resolution to Authorize and Direct the proper City official(s) to Approve the
2018 Police Department Union contract


Motion by Johnson, to convene the Council into closed session, second by O’Connor. Motion
carried 11-0. The Council convened into closed session at 8:42 p.m.


The Council reconvened into open session at 8:57 p.m.


Motion by Majewski, to approve R-114-2017, second by Engelberger. Majewski outlined the
changes within the contract. Motion carried on a roll call vote 11-0.


Discussion and possible action regarding the creation of an Economic Development Director
position.


Motion by Swadley, to direct the Mayor to include Economic Development Director position
options before introducing the executive budget, second by Majewski.


Amendment by Majewski, to direct the Finance Director to develop and explore possible impacts
on the City budget for the creation of an Economic Development Director position, second by
Swadley.


Motion by Majewski, to direct the Human Resources Director to work with the Finance Director
to explore options for a budget and job description for the position of an Economic Development
Director, second by Swadley. Motion carried on a roll call vote 9-2, with Kittleson and
O’Connor voting noe.


Kittleson left the meeting at 9:12 p.m.


Discussion and possible action on the Planning Commission process and procedures relating to
the Demolition of Historic Building.


Engelberger read a memo he prepared aloud to the Council. His memo outlined the process that
was followed in the request by the owner of 315 E Main St to demolish that property. Attorney
Dregne noted that he had not seen the memo prior to tonight’s meeting and could not offer a
point by point answer at this time. Engelberger explained that the application for the demolition







was applied for prior to the current owner taking ownership of the home and land. At that time a
new application was not turned in and the current one was allowed to continue through the
process. The process to demolish a building in the current code, would follow the same process
as the conditional use permit, that process has not been followed. The demolition request noted
that the vacant land would be a “private park” and a park is not allowable as a conditional use.
He noted discrepancies in municipal code 78-913 in regards to the Landmarks Commission and
Planning Commission. Swadley noted that he felt that the Council should have approved the
proposed use for the land before the Planning Commission could consider a demolition request.


Motion by Engelberger, to direct the city attorney to provide a legal opinion on whether or not
the actions taken the on demolition application are valid or invalid in light of the fact that the
original application was submitted by the prior owner and a new written application was not
submitted by the current owner, second by Majewski. Motion carried 9-1, with O’Connor voting
noe.


O’Connor left the meeting at 10:00 p.m.


Motion by Engelberger, to direct the City Attorney to reconsider his legal opinion regarding
whether the Conditional Use Permit procedure followed in its entirety for project review
proposals, second by Hirsch. Motion carried 9-0.


Motion by Engelberger, to direct the City Clerk to determine whether or not the downtown
design overlay zoning district is in fact a historic district is under the provisions in Chapter 38 of
the City of Stoughton Municipal Code or under the national registry of historic places, second by
Hirsch. Motion carried 9-0.


Motion by Truehl, to direct the City Attorney to address the concern that the process is being
used to obtain approval of use of the property that may not be allowable under the current zoning
code, second by Engelberger. Motion carried 9-0.


Jenson left the meeting at 10:19 p.m.


Attorney will bring findings to the August 8, 2017 Common Council meeting.


ADJOURNMENT


Motion by Hirsch, to adjourn the meeting, second by Majewski. Motion carried 8-0. The July 25, 2017
meeting of the Common Council adjourned at 10:22 p.m.








Meeting of the: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE COUNCIL/ STOUGHTON AREA
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD


Date/Time: Thursday, July 20, 2017 @ 7:30 p.m.
Location: Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 321 South Fourth


Street
Members: Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Michael Engelberger, Regina


Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Tass Johnson, Dennis Kittleson, Lisa
Reeves, Thomas Majewski, Pat O’Connor, Scott Truehl, and
Mayor Donna Olson


Others Present: Planning Director Scheel, Police Chief Leck, Finance Director LaBorde


CALL TO ORDER


School Board President Dirks called the meeting to order at 7:52 p.m.


LaBorde called the roll and noted that eight alderpersons were present, with Kittleson, Hirsch,
Majewski and Truehl being absent and excused.


Introductions were made of all present from the City Council and SASD Board of Education.


City Comprehensive Plan
Swadley presented information related to the comprehensive plan and related school district
language. There are a couple of corrections that need to be made to this information.


City population growth, with discussion on current and future development of Single-Family
Housing
Swadley noted that the city had recently amended the comprehensive plan to incorporate
language that was proposed by Engelberger to work with the school district. Engelberger
suggested that the School Board work together with the townships to have similar joint meetings.


Director Scheel presented an update on the current development taking place in Stoughton as
well as the developments with single-family homes. Swadley mentioned the Riverfront
Redevelopment area and that the master developer had pulled out of the project for now and that
information on the design charrette can be found on the RDA website. In addition a market
study was presented by Elven Sted related to their proposed development in the area. Swadley
will forward the study to the Board for their information. Dr. Onsager asked if the City had ever
considered conducting a neighborhood analysis.


Marketing the Stoughton Area Community
Board member Coughlin stated that there seems to be a lack of voice in the community from the
young families, a stagnation of population growth, declining enrollment, and the inability to
attract young families to Stoughton. Dr. Onsager suggested that a concerted effort be made
between the School, City, and Chamber to market what Stoughton has to offer – “small town feel
with big city amenities nearby” – that we need to find a way to sell ourselves.







Exploration of Open Enrollment-related issues
Dr. Onsager presented information related to a third party that conducted a survey on enrollment.
The group directly contacted families who are enrolled in and enrolled out of the district. They
results of the survey just were made available so the Board will be further exploring the reports.
Discussion took place regarding school vouchers and the effects of actions taken at the State
level. Dr. Onsager stated that they have been making budget adjustments in preparation of the
loss of funding. They are looking at ways to leverage technology as a tool and continue to meet
the needs of the students with a shrinking budget.


Joint work between the City & SASD on responding to issues related to a rise in poverty among
students
Dr. Onsager noted that there is an increase in homelessness and in those students in the reduced
lunch program. There is a group that helps to support the lunch accounts and provide clothes for
students. This year a summer lunch program was started and continued reading programs
offered during the summer. He suggested that a “community conversation” needs to take place
on poverty with the different services that we have. Mayor Olson noted that there are
organizations that are currently providing some of these services including HATS. Swadley
asked about the SRO program in the schools. Chief Leck explained they are in the third year of
the position and the officer is very busy interacting with the children. They address safety issues,
incidents in the schools and continue to improve the program. He stated that this is one of the
best proactive preventative programs.


Discussion/action to recommend the formation of an ad-hoc committee
Dirks suggested the creation of a subgroup which would consist of 3 members from the City and
3 members from the School Board to meet with specific tasks and then report back to the Joint
group. The School presented Bubon, Freye, and Coughlin (co-chair). The City presented
Jenson, Johnson (co-chair), and Engelberger. The tasks would be to look into marketing the
Stoughton area community and to create policies to encourage more development of single-
family housing. Motion by Jenson to recommend the creation of a sub Ad-hoc committee
consisting of three members of the Council, three members of the School Board and a
representative from the Chamber of Commerce to address specific tasks as outlined and report
back to the Joint School/Council committee within sixty days, second by Engelberger. Motion
carried unanimously.


Update on Building Bridges Mental Health Crisis Team
Dr. Onsager stated that the school district will be hiring two mental health experts to assist
students and families with trauma and mental health issues. Interviews are being on Monday.
The program is possible thanks to Joe Parisi. Kelli the School’s Director of Pupil Services will
be overseeing the program.


Future agenda items
Dirks noted that the committee should meet at least every three months and that future items for
the next meeting be forwarded to either he or Swadley.







Adjourn
Motion by Freye to adjourn the joint meeting of the Committee of the Whole and the SASD
Board of Education at 10:04 p.m., second by Boersma. Motion carried unanimously.








T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\8-8-2017\05a-O-8-2017-Amending Section 70-176 (47)- Restricted Parking 217.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Amending Chapter 70-176 (47) of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; relating to parking restrictions in
Business Park North


Committee Action: Public Safety recommends approval 5-0.


Fiscal Impact: N/A


File Number: O-8-2017 1st Reading:


2nd Reading:


August 8, 2017


August 22, 2017


1. The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows:


Sec. 70-176 (47) is amended to allow parking on the inside lane of Business Park North Drive.


 Sec. 70-176. - Parking prohibited at all times.


No person shall park, stop or leave standing any vehicle, except temporarily for the purpose of and while
actually engaged in loading or unloading or in receiving or discharging passengers and while the vehicle is attended
by a licensed operator so that it may be moved promptly in case of an emergency or to avoid obstruction of traffic,
upon any of the following highways or parts of highways:


 (47) Both sides of Business Park Circle, Commerce Road and Progress Lane, except that parking is
allowed for on the inside lane from 200 feet west of Commerce Drive to 500 feet south of Progress lane as
officially marked.


2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication.


Dates


Council Adopted:


Mayor Approved:
Donna Olson, Mayor


Published:


Attest:
Lana Kropf, City Clerk







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\8-8-2017\05a-O-8-2017-Amending Section 70-176 (47)- Restricted Parking 217.doc







CITY OF STOUGHTON
Administrative Services


381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 608.873.6677 fax 608.873.5519


MEMORANDUM


August 3, 2017


To: Common Council


From: Lana Kropf, City Clerk


RE: Ordinance O-8-2017- Parking restrictions in Business Park North


On July 26, 2017, the Public Safety considered and approved the amendments to Section 70-
176(47) of the Stoughton Municipal Code; relating to parking restrictions in Business Park North.
The committee approved 5-0. See below for the meeting minute excerpt.


“Discussion and possible action regarding amending Chapter 70-176 (47) of the City of
Stoughton Municipal Code; relating to parking restrictions in Business Park North:


Chief Leck explained that this ordinance had been discussed and approved by the committee
in 2014. Although approved by the committee, it was never given to Council to consider.
This restriction has been imposed and signage has been posted. This ordinance would need to
go to Council for approval, so that it may be codified.


Motion by Johnson, to approve the ordinance amending Chapter 70-176 (47) of the City of
Stoughton Municipal Code; relating to parking restrictions in Business Park North and to
recommend to Council for consideration, second by Kittelson. Motion carried 5-0.”


If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (608) 873-6692 or email at
lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us







70-176 (47) Both sides of Business Park North, (except that parking is allowed for on the


inside lane from 200 feet west of Commerce Drive to 500 feet south of Progress Lane),


Commerce Road and Progress Lane.


8-27-14 PSC Minutes


Motion by Lawrence to Allow parking on the inside lane on Business Park Circle from


approximately 200 feet west of Commerce Drive to approximately 500 feet south of Progress


Lane. Including; prohibiting truck parking and not allowing overnight parking. 2nd by


O’Connor. Discussion: Lawrence commented on posting and general description of area to


allow parking. Swadley requested to add yellow painted curbing to restrict parking near


driveways to allow better truck access. David Wendt commented that he would have


concerns if parking was allowed on the north end of Business Park Circle.





		05a-O-8-2017-Amending Section 70-176 (47)- Restricted Parking 217.pdf

		05b-Memo for Ordinance Amendment- BPN Parking Restriction.pdf

		05c-Business Park North Parking Exemption 70-176-47 2014.pdf






T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\8-8-2017\06a-O-9-2017-Creating Section 70-176 (73).doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Creating Chapter 70-176 (73) of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; relating to parking restrictions on the
north side of the 300 block of West Taft Street


Committee Action: Public Safety recommends approval 5-0


Fiscal Impact: N/A


File Number: O-9-2017 1st Reading:


2nd Reading:


August 8, 2017


August 22, 2017


1. The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows:


Sec. 70-176 (73) is created to restrict parking on the north side of the 300 block of Taft Street


 Sec. 70-176. - Parking prohibited at all times.


No person shall park, stop or leave standing any vehicle, except temporarily for the purpose of and while
actually engaged in loading or unloading or in receiving or discharging passengers and while the vehicle is attended
by a licensed operator so that it may be moved promptly in case of an emergency or to avoid obstruction of traffic,
upon any of the following highways or parts of highways:


(73) No parking on north side of the 300 block of Taft Street from N. Page Street to 140 feet west as
officially marked.


2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication.


Dates


Council Adopted:


Mayor Approved:
Donna Olson, Mayor


Published:


Attest:
Lana Kropf, City Clerk







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\8-8-2017\06a-O-9-2017-Creating Section 70-176 (73).doc







CITY OF STOUGHTON
Administrative Services


381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 608.873.6677 fax 608.873.5519


MEMORANDUM


August 3, 2017


To: Common Council


From: Lana Kropf, City Clerk


RE: Ordinance O-9-2017- Parking restrictions on West Taft Street


On July 26, 2017, the Public Safety considered and approved the amendments to Section 70-
176(73) of the Stoughton Municipal Code; relating to parking restrictions on West Taft Street.
The committee approved 5-0. See below for the meeting minute excerpt.


“Discussion and possible action regarding creating Chapter 70-176 (73) of the City of
Stoughton Municipal Code; relating to parking restrictions on the 300 block of Taft
Street:


Chief Leck explained this request has come forward as a way to control stormwater flooding
and water erosion. The cars that are allowed to park on the north side of Taft Street create a
water barrier that allows for the flooding and erosion. Chief Leck noted that this would not
affect any residential parking as there are no homes on that side of the street. Kittleson noted
that the ordinance should indicate West Taft Street, instead of just Taft Street. Chief Leck
agreed and noted that would be corrected before going to Council. Chief Leck indicated that he
will be notifying all of the homeowners in that area, of the ordinance change, as well.


Motion by Kittleson, to approve creating Chapter 70-176 (73) of the City of Stoughton
Municipal Code; relating to parking restrictions on the 300 block of West Taft Street and
recommend to Council for consideration, second by Jenson. Motion carried 5-0.”


If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (608) 873-6692 or email at
lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us





		06a-O-9-2017-Creating Section 70-176 (73).pdf

		06b- Memo for parking restrictions on West Taft Street.pdf






RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue a Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage
License and “Class A” Liquor License (Cider Only) to Kwik Trip, INC d/b/a Kwik Trip #893 located
at 1359 US Highway 51.


Committee
Action:


Public Safety recommends approval 5-0


Fiscal Impact:


File Number: R-115-2017 Date Introduced: August 8, 2017


WHEREAS, the City Clerk’s office has received an application to issue a Class “A” Fermented Malt
Beverage License and “Class A” Liquor License (Cider Only) to Kwik Trip, INC d/b/a Kwik Trip #893
located at 1359 US Highway 51, and


WHEREAS, the Public Safety Committee met on July 26, 2017 to consider the application for a Class
“A” Fermented Malt Beverage License and “Class A” Liquor License (Cider Only) and recommends
approval of the application, and


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the
proper city official(s) be hereby directed and authorized to issue a Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage
License and “Class A” Liquor License (Cider Only) to Kwik Trip, INC d/b/a Kwik Trip #893 located at
1359 US Highway 51.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







CITY OF STOUGHTON
Administrative Services


381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 608.873.6677 fax 608.873.5519


MEMORANDUM


August 3, 2017


To: Common Council


From: Lana Kropf, City Clerk


RE: Kwik Trip Alcohol License


On July 26, 2017, the Public Safety considered and approved the application from Kwik Trip,
INC for a “Class A” Liquor- Cider Only and Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage License. The
applicant had originally applied for a Combination “Class A” Liquor and Class “A” Fermented
Malt Beverage License. Traditionally, the Public Safety Committee has not allowed gas
stations/convenience stores to hold a “Class A” Liquor License. I explained this to the applicant
and suggested that the Committee consider a Combination “Class A” Liquor and Class “A”
Fermented Malt Beverage license as originally requested, but I disclosed to the applicant that this
license would ultimately be denied. The committee agreed to maintain consistency with what
types of licenses are issued to gas stations/convenience stores. The committee approved the
application for the “Class A” Liquor- Cider Only and Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage
license 5-0. See below for the meeting minute excerpt.


“Discussion and possible action regarding application by Kwik Trip, Inc for a
combination “Class A” Liquor and Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage License for
Kwik Trip #893:


Clerk Kropf explained that this application is coming from the new Kwik Trip located in the
Kettle Park West Development. This license would allow the store to be able to carry
intoxicating liquor, wine and beer. She noted that the next agenda item would allow the
committee to consider just the approval of a Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage and “Class
A” Liquor- Cider only license, as it has been the decision of the committee to not allow
convenience store to carry intoxicating liquor. Jenson agreed that the committee and Council
has not allowed other gas stations/convenience stores to carry intoxicating liquor and that
they should maintain consistency.


Motion by Jenson, to deny the application by Kwik Trip, Inc for a combination “Class A”
Liquor and Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage License for Kwik Trip #893, second by
Johnson. Motion carried 5-0.


Discussion and possible action regarding application by Kwik Trip, Inc for “Class A”
Liquor- Cider Only and Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage License for Kwik Trip
#893:







CITY OF STOUGHTON
Administrative Services


381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 608.873.6677 fax 608.873.5519


Clerk Kropf explained that the committee and Council has approved convenience stores to
carry fermented malt beverages in the past and the “Class A” Liquor- Cider Only license
would only allow the business to sell hard cider, not intoxicating liquor.


Motion by Jenson, to approve the application by Kwik Trip, Inc for “Class A” Liquor- Cider
Only and Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage License for Kwik Trip #893 and recommend
to Council for approval, second by Johnson. Motion carried 5-0. Kropf explained that a
notice will be published in the August 3, 2017 Courier Hub and this will be before the
Council on August 8, 2017.”


If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (608) 873-6692 or email at
lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us







lkropf

Text Box

        



lkropf

Text Box

            







lkropf

Text Box

       



lkropf

Text Box

       



lkropf

Text Box

        







lkropf

Text Box

      







lkropf

Text Box

       







lkropf

Text Box

       







lkropf

Text Box

      

















		07a-R115-2017-Kwik Trip 893 License Resolution.pdf

		07b- Memo Regarding Kwik Trip Liquor License.pdf

		07c-Kwik Trip #893 Liquor License Application.pdf






RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue an Operator License to Sheila Trentini


Committee Action: Public Safety recommends denial 5-0


File Number: R-116-2017 Date Introduced: August 8, 2017


WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received an application for an Operator’s License from Sheila
Trentini and


WHEREAS, your Public Safety Committee met on July 26, 2017, to consider the terms of the Operator’s
license application and recommends denial; now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby authorized and directed to issue an Operator license to Sheila Trentini.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







CITY OF STOUGHTON
Administrative Services


381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 608.873.6677 fax 608.873.5519


MEMORANDUM


August 3, 2017


To: Common Council


From: Lana Kropf, City Clerk


RE: Operator License Application for Sheila Trentini


On July 26, 2017, the Public Safety considered and denied an Operator License application for
Sheila Trentini, based on Chief Leck’s recommendation. The committee’s motion carried 5-0.
See below for the meeting minute excerpt.


“Discussion and possible action regarding issuance of Operator License to Sheila Trentini:


Chief Leck explained his denial is based on the applicant having four prior OWI’s. Trentini
explained that she had bartended for thirty years prior and would like to continue to bartend at the
Brickhouse.


Motion by Olson, to deny the operator license to Sheila Trentini and recommend to Council for
consideration, second by Kittleson. Motion carried 5-0.”


If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (608) 873-6692 or email at
lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us







lkropf

Text Box

     







lkropf

Text Box

      











lkropf

Text Box

      



lkropf

Text Box

        







lkropf

Text Box

     



lkropf

Text Box

      

















		08a-R-116-2017-Trentini Operator License Resolution.pdf

		08b- Memo Trentini Operator License.pdf

		08c-Trentini Operator License.pdf






RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a Temporary Class “B”/Class “B”
Retailer’s License and Special Event License to the St. Ann Catholic Church.


Committee Action: Public Safety recommends approval 5-0


File Number: R-117-2017 Date Introduced: August 8, 2017


WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City to approve an Application for a Temporary Class
“B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and a Special Event License to the St. Ann Catholic Church for the St.
Ann’s Fall Festival, and


WHEREAS, your Public Safety Committee met on July 26, 2017 to consider the terms of the
Application for a Temporary Class “B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and a Special Event License, and
recommends approval, now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby directed and authorized to execute the Temporary Class “B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and a
Special Event License based on no fines or fees due to the City of Stoughton, attached hereto and
incorporated as part of this resolution, between the City of Stoughton and the St. Ann Catholic Church.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







CITY OF STOUGHTON
Administrative Services


381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 608.873.6677 fax 608.873.5519


MEMORANDUM


August 3, 2017


To: Common Council


From: Lana Kropf, City Clerk


RE: St. Ann’s License Application


On July 26, 2017, the Public Safety considered and approved the application made by the St.
Ann’s Catholic Church for a Special Event and Temporary “Class B”/ Class “B” Retailer’s
license for the St. Ann’s Fall Festival. The committee approved 5-0. See below for the meeting
minute excerpt.


“Discussion and possible action regarding application by the St. Ann’s Catholic Church for
a Special Event and Temporary “Class B”/ Class “B” Retailer’s License for the St. Ann’s
Fall Festival:


Chief Leck explained that this is an annual request for the church. He has not had problems in the
past, and recommends approval.


Motion by Kittleson, to approve the St. Ann’s Catholic Church for a Special Event and
Temporary “Class B”/ Class “B” Retailer’s License for the St. Ann’s Fall Festival and
recommend to Council for consideration, second by Johnson. Motion carried 5-0.”


If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (608) 873-6692 or email at
lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us







lkropf

Text Box

       



lkropf

Text Box

          







lkropf

Text Box

   



lkropf

Text Box

     



lkropf

Text Box

       









		09a-R-117-2017-St. Ann's Temp Event & License Resolution.pdf

		09b- Memo Regarding St Ann's License Application.pdf

		09c-St Ann's Special Event Lic App.pdf






RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing Council approval of a policy (attached as exhibit A) implementing Section 14-38(a) of the
Stoughton Municipal Code; relating to the fining of late arriving annual liquor license renewal
applications.


Committee Action: Public Safety recommends approval 5-0


File Number: R-118-2017 Date Introduced: August 8, 2017


WHEREAS, the Public Safety Committee directed staff to create a policy to implement Section 14-
38(a) of the Stoughton Municipal Code, and


WHEREAS, the existing language within the code allowed for the fining of late arriving annual liquor
license renewal applications, and


WHEREAS, your Public Safety Committee met on July 26, 2017 to discuss the implementation of the
policy, to follow the existing code and directed the City Clerk to send notices to all current liquor license
holders of the policy, now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the Council approve the
policy (attached as exhibit A) implementing Section 14-38(a) of the Stoughton Municipal Code; relating
to the fining of late arriving annual liquor license renewal applications.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







CITY OF STOUGHTON
Administrative Services


381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 608.873.6677 fax 608.873.5519


MEMORANDUM


August 3, 2017


To: Common Council


From: Lana Kropf, City Clerk


RE: Policy regarding Fining of Late Arriving Annual License Renewal Applications


On July 26, 2017, the Public Safety considered and approved a policy for implementing late fees
to late arriving annual liquor license renewal applications. This policy is in accordance with
section 14-38(a) of the Stoughton Municipal Code. The committee approved 5-0. See below for
the meeting minute excerpt.


“Discussion and possible action regarding procedure for issuing late fees to annual liquor
license applicants:


Clerk Kropf explained that she had amended the proposed policy per the committee’s previous
suggestions. Kittleson asked that the policy note that businesses will only be given a late fee per
business day, and not just day. Clerk Kropf noted that she will make the change to the policy and
then send a copy to every current liquor license holder. Jenson noted that this was a policy and
did not need to go to Council for consideration.


Motion by Jenson, to approve the policy with the change that businesses will be fined per
business day, second by Johnson. Motion carried 5-0.”


If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (608) 873-6692 or email at
lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us







Exhibit A


Procedure for Issuing Late Fees for Late Arriving Annual License Renewal Applications


All liquor license renewals are sent to necessary applicants, via certified mail before March 15 annually.


Under Section 14-38(a) of the Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinances, all completed license


applications are due to the City Clerk no later than April 15. The Clerk may move that date if April 15 is a


weekend date. If the liquor license renewals are not received by that date, the Clerk shall impose a $25


per business day late fee to that applicant, until the time the renewal paperwork is received.


Procedure for Clerk’s Office to follow in such instance:


Clerk shall include notification of late fee with annual license renewal letter sent to the applicants via


certified mail in March.


If license renewal paperwork is not received by the Clerk by the deadline, the Clerk shall send a certified


letter to the applicant requesting the paperwork and notifying the applicant that the late fee is being


assessed.


Payment for the late fee shall be paid in its entirety before the license may be released to the applicant


before the start of the new licensing period.







Page 1


Sec. 14-38. - Issuance of license.


(a) The public safety committee shall give any person the opportunity to be heard for or against the
issuance of any license. Upon the receipt of a timely application received by the city clerk, approval of
the application by the city council and after payment of license fee, the city clerk shall issue the
applicant a license. Each license shall be numbered in the order in which issued and shall specifically
state the premises for which issued, the date of issuance, fee paid and the name of the licensee. All
licenses shall remain in force until June 30 following the issuance thereof, unless revoked or
suspended in the manner provided by statute or this chapter. Renewal license applications are due by
April 15 and shall be issued a late fee of $25.00 for each day after April 15 that the application is
received. Payment of the application fee is due in full by June 15 and shall be issued a late fee of
$25.00 for each day later than June 15 that the application fee is received. Payments received after
June 25 shall be made by cash, money order or bank cashiers check only. If necessary, the city clerk
may issue a 60-day provisional retail license to late filing applicants, subject to report and approval of
the chief of police.


(b) Where the applicant's premises are not in compliance with relevant ordinances and/or state codes at
the time of application, the application may be accepted with the provisal that the license shall be
granted and issued only upon the applicant's compliance with applicable ordinances and codes within
90 days of acceptance. If the applicant's premises are not in compliance within the 90-day period, the
acceptance shall be withdrawn.


(Code 1986, § 12.03(6); Ord. No. 0-10-2011, § 2, 6-14-2011; Ord. No. 0-14-2011, § 1, 6-28-
2011; Ord. No. 0-15-2011, 10-25-2011)





		10a-R-118-2017- Approval of Policy relating to fining of late arriving liquor license renewals.pdf

		10b- Memo RE Fining Late Arriving Liquor License Renewals.pdf

		10c-Procedure for Issuing Late Fees for Late Arriving Annual License Renewal Applications.pdf

		10d--Sec._14_38.___General_licensing_requirements..pdf



